
 

 

The Mayor’s European Social Fund (ESF) 2019 – 2023 Programme Round 3 

General – Questions and Answers  
 
Q1: I’ve just gone through the application form for the Careers Cluster and a number 
of the questions do not have an answer field. Please could you re-issue an amended 
form. 
 
A: For this grant award process you are required to submit your answers to PART C 
of the Application Form in a separate Microsoft Word document (ensuring you keep 
to the word limit and use Arial font, point 12). These instructions are provided in 
Section 1 of the Application Forms. However, we will also highlight this on the 
Funding Opportunities landing page to ensure clarity. 
  
Q2: Upon reviewing the financial requirements this evening we have the following 
question: For the value of funding as a % of turnover. It would seem reasonable and 
practical to split the value of the grant across the length of the contract (3 years ) and 
calculate this figure as the percentage of annual turnover, therefore comparing like 
with like. Please can you confirm that this understanding is correct. 

A: The value of funding as a percentage of sales/turnover that will be awarded a 
score higher than zero is already set high at 60%. This high threshold is intended to 
accommodate smaller organisations which may a have lower turnover. Therefore, 
the value of funding (the grant value) will be based on the lifetime value, not the 
value averaged over 3 years. 

 
Q3: Upon reviewing this further, we have a further question; Please can you clarify 
the definition of income within the financial eligibility questionnaire. Based on the 
requirements, I would take this as to be turnover, so please can you confirm this. 

A: Yes, your interpretation is correct, Sales/Income refers to turnover. 
 

Q4: Can the authority please confirm whether there is a maximum number of grants 
a single supplier can be awarded? 
 
A: With the exception of Careers Clusters there is no limit on the number of grants a 
bidder can apply for or be awarded through this grant award process (subject to due 
diligence). This is regardless of any grants or contracts you may have been awarded 
in previous rounds. If you are intending to bid for Careers Clusters, please see Q1 of 
the Careers Clusters Q&A for further information.  
 

Q5: I cannot find the Project Requirement documents for the NEET SEND tenders, 
under the SEND tab the Targeted NEET, rather than SEND NEET documentation is 
available. I have checked the other tabs and they do not seem to be there either. 
 
A:  We have checked and the 'SEND NEET Project Requirements' document is 
available under the SEND dropdown on the GLA's ESF Funding Opportunities page. 



 

 

Here is the link https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/european-social-
fund/funding-opportunities.   

 
 
Published Friday May 15 2020  
 

Q6: We would like to apply for funding, but as our company has only been active for 
less than 6 months I don’t think we will be accepted for the gang prevention. How 
would someone be able to become a sub-contractor? How would I be able to get in 
touch with other organisations that are lead funders and sub contract off them? We 
have been working with the Police on gang preventions and have been funded by 
the Metropolitan Police previously. 

A: The GLA has created a Partnership Database to help organisations develop 
relationships for funding opportunities. You can view registered organisations, or add 
yourself to this partnership database here. (https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-
do/funding/european-social-fund/mailing-list-and-partnership-database 

 
 Q7: Can the GLA confirm the acceptability of a bid that is caveated in order to 
exclude the requirement to take out insurances to cover activities that are outside the 
scope of the programme being tendered? For example, a programme for 
employability services will not use Capital Assets and therefore has not requirement 
to purchase the relevant insurance. 



 

 

A: In order preserve the integrity of the [application/bidding] process no changes to 
the published grant documents that are sought by bidders will be accepted by the 
GLA. Bidders should base their responses to the grant award on the published Grant 
Agreement. Bidders referring to the Cabinet Office’s “Outsourcing Playbook” are 
reminded that it concerns the procurement of services rather the awards of grant 
funding as contributions to third party project costs. In addition to the non-binding 
nature of the playbook therefore, it is not relevant to this bidding exercise.  
 

Q8: Can the GLA confirm the acceptability of a bid response that limits the bidders’ 
liability to a percentage of annual turnover (in line with the Cabinet Office’s 
Outsourcing Playbook) and to restrict liability to direct losses only (i.e. to exclude 
indirect and consequential losses)? 

A: Please see response to Question 12. 
 

Q9: As a none AEB contract holder, can we put learners through level 2 courses that 
could be funded by AEB? And is there any limit to the number of programmes we 
can fund through this? Can we still count the outcome as part of the project as the 
beneficiaries are the same? 

A: An outcome for a qualification (or units towards a qualification) completed or 
achieved by a participant can only be claimed against or reported to the ESF project 
if the provider delivers the training leading to that qualification as an integral part of 
the ESF project. If a participant is supported to access training funded from another 
source (e.g. AEB) then the qualification must be reported to, and the funding claimed 
from, that source, not ESF. You may still wish to support participants to access AEB-
funded training courses as, by enabling your participants to access additional 
qualifications or units towards qualifications you may help more of them to achieve 
other paid outcomes, such as entry to employment or sustained employment. 
 

Q10: As an AEB contract holder if we put a learner through a level 2 employability 
award could we use the certificate as evidence of employability activity as outlined in 
the brief? 

A: A Level 2 Employability Award certificate would provide some evidence to support 
'employability activity' for quality purposes however, as this activity is not funded by 
the Grant Funding available for the Project, we would be looking to see what the 
Project itself is delivering in relation to the Employability Support package provided 
to the Participant. 

 
Q11: At point of initial IAG and basic skills assessment if the learner needed to 
achieve a recognized English and maths qualification and was referred to another 
training provider to achieve this under AEB, would the learner actually need to have 
achieved this at the end of the 32 weeks or can they still be working in it even if they 
were still in work? 
 



 

 

A: Where there is a recognised need for a Basic Skills qualification, a Participant 
should be encouraged to start this as soon as possible and it should make up the 
package of support provided to the Participant to enable them to move into 
Employment, Education or Training. 
 
In order to assess the numbers of Participants that have benefited from a basic skill 
qualification, albeit via a separate funder, the Participant would have to have 
achieved the qualification in order for it to be reported. However, as these are 
reported outputs and do not generate an income successful Providers will be 
encouraged to report statistics on Participants that are continuing their learning  post 
the 32 week sustained period for evaluation purposes. 
 
Q12: We are planning to put together an innovative programme of training support 
for each participant in the project including non-AEB funded training/ non accredited 
/max 2 accredited level 3 units all funded through ESF along with other qualifications 
that are funded through AEB. Is this an acceptable outcome for the programme, and 
will meet the requirements for the payment of qualifications achievement?   
 
A: The GLA welcomes innovative Projects that meet the needs of Participants and 
are able to provide various forms of training to enable Participants to progress. 
However, with regards to payment for the Sector Skills Projects a maximum of two 
payments will be made for each participant obtaining qualifications: a maximum of 
one payment can be for a full Level 2 qualification and a maximum of one can be for 
achievement of ‘at least two units at Level 3’.  Only accredited qualification will be 
eligible for payment.  
 
Q13: We are confused with the payment model for “Qualifications Achieved”. How 
will this work in reality, with some qualifications being funded by AEB? 
 
A: An outcome for a qualification (or units towards a qualification) completed or 
achieved by a participant can only be claimed against or reported to the ESF project 
if the Provider delivers the training leading to that qualification as an integral part of 
the project. If a participant is supported to access training funded from another 
source (e.g.  AEB) then the qualification must be reported to, and the funding 
claimed from, that source, not ESF. You may still wish to support participants to 
access AEB-funded training courses as, by enabling your participants to access 
additional qualifications or units towards qualifications you may help more of them to 
achieve outcomes into sustained employment, which are also paid outcomes for 
many of the Projects in Round 3.  
 
Q14: 8) Can you fund a level 2 qualification through ESF even though it could be 
funded by AEB? 
 
A: Please see response to Question 13. 
 
Q15: Please can you confirm that we can partner with a number of leads/Primes on 
the same tender? 
A: Bids may be submitted by Sole Providers who are proposing to deliver all of the 
activities in the project requirements themselves, or by Consortia (where all 
members of the Consortium will sign the grant agreement) or by Partnerships (with a 



 

 

Lead Provider signing the grant agreement on behalf of all delivery partners). Please 
see Appendix B of the Prospectus for full definitions. The GLA encourages a 
partnership approach to delivery to ensure Participants get the support they may 
need from specialist and/or grassroots organisations who may not have the capacity 
to bid as a Lead Provider. 
 
Q16: I have found the partnership database very helpful, thank you for this being 
available. I still have a limited steer on who may be interested in leading on some of 
the tenders – do you have any more information on leads/Primes that I could be 
introduced to? 
 
A: Unfortunately, we do not hold information on which Providers are considering 
submitting an application for a Project in this round of funding. The Partnership 
Database has fields for providers to indicate the type of organisation they are, the 
areas they work in, and their contact details. You can access the latest version here: 
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/european-social-fund/mailing-list-
and-partnership-database. 
 
Q17: Can you please clarify the meaning of this equality group? “Participants who 
live in a single adult household with dependent children” – does this mean the 
participants themselves are the single parents, or that they live in a house with single 
parent (ie their parent is the single parent)? 
 
A: Participants who live in a Single Adult Household With Dependent Children are 
effectively lone parents with dependent children.  
 
Please see page 24 of the Evidence Handbook for a full definition.  
 
Q18: Can you please clarify this requirement at paragraph 37.2 of the delivery 
handbook: 37. You should only use Subcontractors: …. 37.2. which your governing 
body/board of directors and your accounting officer (senior responsible person) 
determine as being of high quality and low risk, and provide written evidence 
confirming this; Does “provide written evidence of this” mean a) written evidence that 
the subcontractors are high quality and low risk, or b) written evidence that our board 
of directors agree ? 
 
A: The 'written evidence' would take the form of confirmation from the successful 
Provider's governing body or board of directors and the accounting officer (senior 
responsible person), that they are satisfied that each subcontractor appointed by the 
provider is considered as high quality and low risk. Please note, this confirmation is 
not required at this stage of the Grant Award process. Confirmation should be 
obtained as part of the process of appointing a subcontractor and retained on the 
relevant procurement files as it may be inspected by the GLA or ESF auditors. 
 
Q19: We are interested in delivering under Round 3 of the GLA ESF funding. We are 
not large or diverse enough to be a lead partner, but we can offer specialist EET 
provision for homeless and disadvantaged young people 16-25. We would like to join 
a consortium and need some help connecting with lead partners. We are interested 
in delivering in the West London Alliance area and Central London Forward. Would 
you be able to point us in the right direction. 

https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/european-social-fund/mailing-list-and-partnership-database
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/european-social-fund/mailing-list-and-partnership-database


 

 

 
A: The GLA encourages a partnership approach to delivery to ensure Participants 
get the support they may need from specialist and/or grassroots organisations who 
may not have the capacity to bid as a Lead Provider. 
 
To facilitate partnerships we host a Partnership Database which you can sign up. It 
has fields for providers to indicate the type of organisation they are, the areas they 
work in, and their contact details.  
 
 You can access the latest version here: https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-
do/funding/european-social-fund/mailing-list-and-partnership-database 
 
Q20: In terms of the delivery areas, do bidders’ delivery sites need to be located in 
these specific areas in order to be eligible? Or is eligibility based on postcode i.e. 
where the service user resides. 
 
A: Participant eligibility is based on where they reside. In terms of bidders delivery 
sites these can be based in a range of localities within London, but should consider 
Participants travel needs. Please refer to section 1.5 of the Project Requirements for 
project specific geographical requirements. 
 
Q21: In the event that the economy does not recover in time for the start dates 
envisaged for these Projects, will the Commissioner adopt a more flexible approach 
to the proposed outputs and primary results, as research suggests that the most 
vulnerable groups are struggling (and will continue to struggle) to find work as a 
result of this pandemic 
 
A: Bidder's should submit an Application that aims to meet the published Project 
Requirements including the proposed outputs and outcomes, as a minimum. Bidders 
are asked to set out the number of participants they will engage and support in order 
to achieve the minimum output and outcome requirements and explain their rationale 
for these numbers. If you believe that the delivery environment has/will become more 
difficult as a result of Covid-19, you should address this in your application and 
explain how your methodology will enable you to manage and respond to this risk. If 
the delivery environment changes significantly and/or unexpectedly after grants have 
been awarded the GLA will consider these circumstances as they arise. 
 
Q22: In light of the challenges brought about by the Covid-19 pandemic and the 
specific groups being targeted in this programme, how does the Commissioner 
envisage support for mental health and wellbeing being built into these projects? 
 
A: Bidders are encouraged to consider the potential impact of Covid-19 on their 
target groups and address how they will respond to this in their applications. 
 
Q23:  To ensure applications and requested documents are received on time, what 
is the maximum attachment size for GLA servers? 
 
A: The GLA server limit for receiving external emails is 30 Megabytes. 
 



 

 

Q24: What is the view of more than one organisation making a joint bid for a one pan 
grant? 
 
A: Please see the response to Q19. 
 
Published Wednesday 27 May 2020.  
 
Q25: When calculating the ‘Value of funding’ percentage is it correct to assume a 
breakdown of funding over a 12 month period rather than the whole contract value?  
 
A: Yes, you are correct. The ‘Value of Funding’ percentage is calculated on a 12 
month (annual) basis. 
 
Q26: Could you also confirm whether we need to register an interest in bidding prior 
to submitting our bid in its final form by the deadline? 
 
A: There is no requirement for bidders to register an interest in bidding prior to 
submitting their final Application form. The Application states 'Please email: 
MayorsESF201923Programme@london.gov.uk to register your interest in submitting 
an Application and be put on a discrete mailing list to be notified when Clarification 
Questions and Answers have been published online'. The purpose of this registration 
is for the GLA to track the number of potential Applications and for potential bidders 
to be put on to the discreet mailing list to be notified when Clarifictaion and Answers 
are published online, but organisations that have not registered an interest are still 
able to submit an Application by the deadline set. 
 
Q27: Can you please clarify whether FileCloud and Open Processing System are 
web-based applications, or do they have to be downloaded? Also which browsers 
are supported? 
 
A: Open Project System (OPS) and FileCloud are secure online web-based 
applications without the need to install additional software. Browsers supported are: 
 

• Edge (current version on Windows 10)  

• IE11 or newer (except Compatibility Mode)  

• Firefox 60 ESR or newer 

• Chrome 66 or newer  

• Safari 10 or newer 
 
All Providers that are awarded grants to deliver the ESF 2019-23 programme will be 
required to use the secure system provided by the GLA to input the data required for 
claims and reporting purposes. Full instructions on registering on the OPS system 
and FileCloud, allocation of accounts and the use of the system will be provided for 
Providers that are awarded Grants during the Onboarding stage. 
 
Q28: Kindly refer to the SECTION 3 – APPLICATION FORM PART A- PRE-
QUALIFICATION QUESTIONNAIRE point no. 6. Does your organisation have a 
Health & Safety Policy that is reviewed at least every 12 months? (If you have fewer 
than five employees, please answer ‘yes’). We normally review the policy annually 



 

 

but we cannot respond as Yes because our employees are over than five. Kindly 
clarify. 
 
A: Organisations that have five employees or more have a legal requirement to 
ensure they have a full Health & Safety Policy in place that is reviewed at least every 
12 months. From the information provided in the query, the response to this question 
would be 'yes'. Organisations with fewer than five employees are not legally required 
to have a written. 
 
Q29: Please may the Commissioner clarify whether Individualised Learner Record 
returns are required for this project? 
 
A: Although the Mayor's ESF 2019-23 Programme is being match funded by the 
GLA's AEB Procured Programme, Bidders do not need to supply data to the 
Education and Skills Funding Agency's (ESFA's) via the Individual Learner Record 
returns. All claims data will be required to be submitted via the GLAs Open Project's 
System and FileCloud. Please refer to the Delivery Handbook for further information. 
 
Published Tuesday 9 June 2020.  
 
Q30: For some companies’ due diligence documents, a statement of the 
organisation’s cash flow forecast and the organisation’s budget for the current year 
are changing on a monthly basis due to the COVID-19 situation and therefore will 
have little bearing on the cash flow/budget position when the bid is awarded. This 
can also include highly commercially sensitive information and for some include 
details of services etc that are not directly connected to the tender being applied for. 
If they are submitting 3 years’ worth of audited/filed accounts can you clarify why 
these 2 documents are needed and what aspect of due diligence do, they contribute 
to? 
 
A: A statement of cash flow forecast for current year gives the estimated income 
coming in and expenditure going out of the business. It is required by the GLA to 
determine financial health in terms of the organisation’s position of solvency and 
whether they are likely to go bankrupt. The budget for the current year is required 
because it estimates the revenue and expenses over a specified future period of 
time. It enables the GLA to see how the plans for the funding will be executed and 
helps to highlight any potential financial risks. Both of these documents forms part of 
the GLA’s due diligence checks and financial health requirement. 
 
Published Tuesday 16 June 2020. 
 
Q31: I see that OPS is a GLA internal system and FileCloud is a commercial system. 
For the purposes of our budgeting, can you please let me know if there will a cost to 
providers for eg Filecloud licenses or any other cost associated with using these 
systems? 
 
A: The GLA will not charge providers for using GLA's Open Project System (OPS) or 
FileCloud or any alternative system that the GLA requires providers to use for the 
purposes of data submission, reporting and claims. Please also refer to the response 
to Q27 for further information on FileCloud. 



 

 

 
Q32: The guidance on document retention referred to in the prospectus includes 
some requirements on data retention eg “To minimise risks of miscalculation and 
support Grant Recipients and the Managing Authority in simplifying processes, all 
projects under the ESF 2014-2020 Programme must ensure they keep all 
documents for 10 years after their final ESF claim is paid by the ESF Managing 
Authority.”. Does “documents” refer to personal data eg evidence of employment 
outcomes which will name participants and may include details such as NI number? 
Or does it only refer to financial claims and organisational accounts etc? 
 
A: Please refer to the 'Storage and Retention of Project Documents' section of the 
Delivery Handbook for further information. All supporting documentation evidencing 
the delivery of your Project must be kept for a period of ten years following the date 
that the final claim for the ESF 2014-20 Programming period is paid to the GLA by 
the Managing Authority. This is known as the ‘Retention of Documents Date’. 
Currently the Retention of Documents Date for this Mayor’s ESF 2019-23 
Programme is estimated to be 31 December 2034. Documents must be collected 
and retained in line with the England ESF Operational Programme 2014-20 
Guidance on Document Retention, including Electronic Data Exchange 
(https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/european-social-funddocument-
retention). Providers must retain original claims documentation, including 
Participants' personal data and Beneficiary Organisation data that has been 
collected as evidence of eligibility and outputs and outcomes, evidence of delivery, 
management information returns, financial records and all other documents 
necessary to verify the delivery of the Project in relation to this Grant Agreement until 
at least the Retention of Documents Date. you must retain the documents for 
yourself and your Subcontractors. 
 
Q33: Could you please clarify that for question 1.7 Risk Management, which is set at 
500 word limit, includes any words which are placed in the table section under Risk 
and Mitigation columns as well as in the Risk Narrative, or does it just apply to the 
Riak Narrative section? We intend to include the answer to this question in the 
separate Word document for Part C. 
 
A: The 500 word limit for question 1.7 Risk Management does not include the words 
placed in the table where you asked to list the risks you have identified. 
 
Q34: Does the 15% of Covid-19 uplift be applied as part of the programme costs or 
added on to the programme costs? 
 
A: In order to assist with cashflow during the Project set-up period, before an ESF 
Provider is able to start claiming payments for Outputs, Bidders may request an 
advance payment of no more than 15 per cent of the total Lifetime Grant Value they 
are applying for. Bidders must select the value of the advance that they would like to 
request when completing the Payment Trigger Calculator. The maximum advance 
payment that is normally allowed is 10 per cent of the Lifetime Grant Value, but the 
GLA has increased the maximum advance to 15 per cent of the Lifetime Grant Value 
to reflect the potential impact of COVID-19, which may lead to a longer set-up period 
or slower recruitment than normal. The 15% is an advance payment of a proportion 
of the project costs and is not an additional payment on top of the project costs: it is 



 

 

encompassed within the total Lifetime Grant Value awarded. Advance payments will 
be recovered from ESF Providers against payments due for second stage Outputs. 
The Payment Trigger Calculator provides additional information regarding the point 
where advances will be recovered for each Project. If insufficient Outputs are 
achieved to enable recovery of the Advance payment, the GLA will recover the 
payment in another manner, which may include one or more of; recovery against 
payment for other Outputs or Results achieved, recovery by issuing an invoice for 
the remaining balance to be repaid as a lump-sum, recovery against any other 
contract or grant-funded project that the organisation may be delivering on behalf of 
GLA. 
 
Q35: is it realistic to state that participants may come from every borough at 0.5% - 
having run a recent ESF programme participants tried to join from all areas of pan 
London and our current database is large for potential participants engaging. 
 
A: If the Project Requirements specify a geographical target, bidders should seek to 
relate their activities to these geographical areas. If the Project is Pan-London 
focused then bidders need to demonstrate their rationale for their chosen delivery 
area in their application. A bidder may propose to focus the delivery of the project on 
a smaller number of boroughs or spread them across all boroughs if they are able to 
demonstrate a rationale for this. A rationale may include where/how the Provider will 
source their potential Participants. 
 
Q36: In the breakdown of costs there is no subheading for the creation of a 
dedicated website however we believe that it's important to create a go to website 
with all relevant information re the programme, contacts etc 
 
A: Within the Payment Trigger Calculator, the costs related to creating a dedicated 
website should be included under the heading of 'Consumables'. Creation of a 
dedicated website should be detailed in the 'Budgeted Allocation of funding within 
the project or a budget detailing which activity within the recipient's organisation will 
be funded' as part of the due diligence documentation requested which should 
include a breakdown of how the funding will be spent over the duration of the 
programme. 
 
Q37: Other costs state rent and leasing of buildings - does this include service 
charges? 
 
A: Yes, please include any costs associated with renting and leasing a building 
under the heading of 'Other Costs - Rent and Leasing of buildings' within the 
Payment Trigger Calculator. 
 
Q38: One of the due diligence documents requested for Round 3 of the Mayor’s 
2019-23 ESF Programme is a copy of the organisation’s Certificate of Incorporation. 
However, as was the case with all Further Education colleges, Barnet College was 
automatically incorporated under the Further Education and Higher Education Act 
1992 when it came out of local authority control which took effect in April 1993. The 
College does not have a certificate as such but would have adopted the Statutory 
Instrument and Articles of Government of a FE Corporation, which is our 



 

 

constitutional document. Please can you advise if the College should attach this 
document instead of a Certificate of Incorporation? 
 
A: The Constitutional documents should be attached, if the organisation was 
incorporated under the Further Education and Higher Education Act 1992. 
 
Q39: When is the notification of award please? Is there a timeline that can be shared 
for when the GLA will make decisions on successful bids? It would be useful to have 
an indication of this timescale to inform completion of Q4.3 Delivery Plan, and to 
inform our planning and costing of the implementation period. 
 
A: We are aiming to score, moderate and complete the due diligence checks on the 
bids submitted for the Mayor's ESF 2019-23 Programme - Round 3 between July -
August 2020 and notify successful and unsuccessful bidders between August - 
September 2020. We currently expect Agreements for grants awarded through this 
grant award process to commence from 1 October 2020. The GLA recognises that 
Providers will normally need time after the Grant Agreement commences to finalise 
and implement Project delivery arrangements and Bidders are asked to state in their 
Bids the date when they expect to begin delivering the project directly to their first 
Participants and/or Employer Beneficiaries. 
 
Q40: Are there any page or word limits on section 4.3 Delivery Plan? 
 
A: There is no word or page limit for question 4.3 Delivery Plan. 
 
Q41: Within the due diligence documentation of the application you ask for a 
statement of the organisation’s cash flow forecast and the organisation’s budget for 
the current year. Do you have a template or an example you can provide for these to 
indicate the level of documentation/detail required. Or can you explain further what is 
sufficient? Additionally, does the current year refer to our organisation’s financial 
year, the tax year or the calendar year? 
 
A: The cash flow forecast, and the organisation's budget should be provided in the 
standard format that it is produced in by the bidding organisation and the bidding 
organisation may present this in a manner most appropriate for themselves. A 
granular breakdown is not necessarily required as long as the breakdown provides 
the GLA with a good understanding of the organisation's cash flow and budget for 
the current year. The ‘current year’ refers to the financial year. 
 
Published Friday 19 June 2020.  
 
Q41: We were defining outputs in line with Priority Access 1 and 2 however in the 
guidance it relates outputs to the document Output Indicators Definitions and 
guidance for ERDF for England V.6 which includes outputs such as C1, P13, C4 Are 
we to use the guidance notes for itemising the outputs? If so all of the following for 
the creative stream - C5, C8, C28 and P11? 
 
A: The GLA can confirm that the Mayor's ESF 2019-23 Programme is part funded by 
the European Social Fund and therefore the ESF Outputs & Results to be delivered 
are as set out as per the national eligibility rules and programme guidance for ESF 



 

 

(not ERDF), which are available on the government’s European Structural and 
Investment Funds 2014-20 website (https://www.gov.uk/guidance/england-2014-to-
2020-european-structural-andinvestment-funds). Each Project has its own set of 
ESF Outputs & Results to be delivered which either fall within ESF Priority Axis 1, 2 
or both. Some outputs and results may have additional GLA requirements or 
definitions and so bidders should also take note of the requirements in the Project 
Requirements and Evidence Handbook published as part of this Grant Award 
process. 
 
Q42: Requests for cash flow and budget statements are being submitted showing 
two scenarios depending on business contracts and anticipated levels of orders. Due 
to covid-19 many areas have changed but will the GLA look for a mean between the 
two scenarios portrayed? 
 
A: The GLA is not permitted to assess or comment on any information submitted by 
bidders prior to the Application deadline. The GLA will consider all financial 
information/statements submitted by bidders with their application for funding, but if 
more than one version of information is submitted as part of a bidder's application 
the GLA reserves the right to decide, at its sole discretion, which information it will 
rely upon for bid evaluation and due diligence purposes. Bidders should submit 
cashflow forecasts and budget statements which are available at the time of 
submitting their bids to the GLA. 
 
Q43:  AS programmes grow sometimes additional staff on the ground with outreach 
will be required. Will the GLA provide flexibility with budgets to move allocations if 
the programme is performing well. 
 
A: The GLA recognises that as the delivery of the Project progresses over the 
lifetime of the Project, ESF Providers may need to adjust the original budgets 
proposed duirng the bidding stage to meet the needs of Participants and to 
successfully deliver the Project. Please note, that this Programme is a 'Payment by 
Results' Programme and payments will be made upon evidence that the 
Outputs/Results claimed have been delivered as per the Eligibility and Evidence 
Handbook and therefore the GLA will not monitor expenditure. However, ESF 
funding may only be used to meet the costs of delivering the Project (including 
overheads), i.e. providers are not permitted to make a surplus or profit, therefore 
ESF Providers should keep auditable records relating to the finance of the Project 
because there may be a requirement from the GLA, DWP, National Audit Office, 
European Commission, European Court of Auditors or other programme authorities 
to view evidence to support expenditure incurred in the delivery of the Project. 
 
Q44: Costs of qualifications will vary depending on the course, level etc. Do we use 
the costs as per the SFA AEB allocation? 
 
A: The ESFA Adult Education Budget Funding Rates are set based on the averaged 
cost of delivering AEB training and qualifications and so may not be the same as the 
cost that a provider incurs to deliver a qualification through this ESF Project. Bidders 
should budget their Project costs based on their estimated actual costs of delivering 
the qualification to the target group, which may include wrap around support and 
other elements that would not be required on a generic AEB-funded course. 



 

 

Q45: Costs of apprenticeships will vary depending if it's a standard or framework - 
generally frameworks are higher levels. Do we cost for the apprenticeship training 
based on current funding levels now for both frameworks and standards? 
 
A: The Mayor’s ESF 2019-23 Programme – Round 3 does not fund the delivery of 
Apprenticeships, therefore the costs to deliver apprenticeships should not be 
included in the Project costs. Some Projects such as STEM, encourage outputs and 
outcomes that include Participants successfully moving onto and sustaining 
employment which may include an Apprenticeship and these Projects should provide 
relevant training and support to enable the Participant to successfully achieve these 
outputs and outcomes. Please refer to Eligibility and Evidence Handbook for further 
information on the evidence requirements for outputs and outcomes. 
 
Q46: can an existing ESF bid dove tail into the new bid with a similar title or does 
each bid have to be completely transparent and be totally independent? 
 
A: This Grant funding is provided for a new project to recruit and deliver bespoke 
support for Participants from the target groups as per the Project Requirements, to 
enable them to successfully achieve the Primary Results of the Project. While the 
Project supported by this Grant may complement and add value to other ESF activity 
or may be similar to ESF activity which has been delivered previously, each ESF 
project is discrete and independent. 
 
Q47:  Following your answer to Question 2 of the general QandA dated 25.05.2020 
we have provided 3 scoring scenarios for 3 types of companies each with a 
difference income threshold we have done this to understand your parameters more 
clearly and to ensure we as an organisation submit the correct score. Q1a Looking at 
company A and B with income levels of less than £500k and £5m annually, applying 
the £3m funding annually (Scenario 1) results in a zero score . When examining 
Company C with annual turnover of £35m the scores are higher assuming a bias 
towards larger organisation in the scoring system Please explain how the higher 
threshold accommodates smaller organisations with lower turnover? Q1b for 
completeness and in the absence of clear guidance we have incorporated Scenario 
2 and 3 which applies the funding across the 3 companies on a 34 mth basis and a 
monthly pro-rata basis respectively. The aim is to provide an alternative calculation 
comparing like with like resulting in my opinion a more equitable scoring. Please 
confirm which scenario should be used to calculate the value of funding score? We 
previously asked:When calculating the ‘Value of funding’ percentage is it correct to 
assume a breakdown of funding over a 12 month period rather than the whole 
contract value? The clarification is still sought. 
 
A:  The parameter of 60% grant value to sales turnover is set at a level which is 
higher than would normally be considered acceptable to the GLA in order to allow for 
applications from smaller as well as larger organisations. A grant value to sales 
turnover level is set to ensure that organisations are not over-reliant for their income 
on the GLA's grant funding, and that they have the organisational capacity to handle 
the level of grant awarded and are able to deliver in accordance with the ESF and 
GLA requirements. The parameters set by the GLA are not looked at in isolation, as 
there are three other ratios which are used and they carry equal weighting in terms 
of scores allocated when determining financial health of organisations. The ratios are 



 

 

calculated based on the latest set of financial information provided by an 
organisation which covers a period of one year and is not based on an average 
which covers the period of the whole contract value. 
 
Q48: Partnership Declaration Form. We are working with organisations who want to 
support the project but their senior team do not enter in partnerships, and therefore 
they cannot sign the form. Therefore, if organisations are supporting the project and 
as an example have a role to play such as referring participants into the project, but 
there is no planned allocation of funding to that organisation, can we list them in the 
bid but can the GLA confirm we do not need to have a signed partnership form for 
these supporting organisations. 
 
A: Only Subcontractors/Subgrantees who will have a formal legal Agreement with 
the bidder to deliver elements of the project are required to complete a 'Partnership 
Declaration Form'. Informal Delivery Partners who will not have a legal Agreement 
are not required to complete a Partnership Declaration Form, but should be 
referenced in the Application Form where relevant. 
 
Q49: Question 24 - is your organisation compliant with the requirement contained 
within Section 54 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015. If we are not an applicable 
organisation due to our turnover being below the threshold should we state NA? 
 
A: Organisations that are exempt from compliance with Section 54 of the Modern 
Slavery Act 2015 should answer 'N/A' to Question 24 of the Application Form. Details 
on Section 54 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 can be found in the following 
Government webpage 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2015/30/section/54/enacted 
 
Q50: Part B (iii) asks bidders to provide ‘Financial regulations – to include 
procurement rules’. Please can you clarify what you require here? Would provision of 
our financial policy satisfy this requirement? 
 
A: Financial regulations are finance and governance frameworks which provide 
guidance on how a company implements protocols and procedures to ensure proper 
accountability for their activity. The framework includes guidance on items such as; 
delegation authority, setting and monitoring budgets, financial controls and financial 
administration. 
 
Q51:  Part B (iii) is requesting: ‘Budgeted allocation of funding within the project or a 
budget detailing which activity within the recipients organisation will be funded 
containing line details of proposed expenditure’ - do we use our own excel template 
for this or is this considered covered within the Payment Trigger Calculator, sheet 1 
‘Cost Delivering Project’? 
 
A: The document(s) submitted in response to the request for the 'Budgeted 
Allocation of funding within the project or a budget detailing which activity within the 
recipient's organisation will be funded' should include a breakdown of how the 
funding will be spent over the duration of the programme. This is in addition to the 
Payment Trigger Calculator (PTC), as the PTC only requires the overall breakdown 
of expenditure. 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2015/30/section/54/enacted


 

 

 
 
Q52: We are completed page 32 of the application form, Declaration. Can you 
confirm that we are only to include text in the greyed boxes available (i.e. not replace 
any of the italics in the brackets within the body text of the declaration, as this is 
locked text). And can you confirm that the information required in the grey boxes is: 
The name of the person authorised to sign our application Our Company name Our 
Company name For the signatories position in our company The date we sign our 
application for submission. 
  
A: The five grey boxes within the 'Declaration' section of the Application Form should 
be entered in the following order: Name of the authorised representative Company 
name Company name Position of Signatory in the organisation Date 
 
Q53: given the Covid19 crisis and the difficulties this has presented in 
communications and the inability to conduct face to face meetings, I would earnestly 
request an extension of the deadline of 10th July. Can this deadline please be 
extended by two weeks until at least Friday 24th July, to enable sufficient time to 
undertake the critical collaborative working and facilitate professional input from a 
range of key Employers, Partners and Providers. I am sure I am not alone in this 
situation, whereby the specification asks for innovative, collaborative proposals and 
yet the timescale does not allow sufficient time for effective and professional 
collaboration to take place. 
 
A: The GLA encourages a partnership approach to delivery to ensure Participants 
get the support they may need from specialist and/or grassroots organisations who 
may not have the capacity to bid as a Lead Provider and we look forward to 
receiving such Applications. To take account of the ongoing pressures on London’s 
skills and employment providers due to COVID-19, we adapted our grant award 
processes; specifically, allowing an extended (nine-week) bidding window and not 
requiring any wet signatures on any bidding documents. In addition pre-launch 
information workshops were held in December and January to allow bidders to begin 
early discussions with potential delivery partners prior to the launch of the grant 
award process in May 2020. In order to be able to award Grants in time for Delivery 
to commence in October 2020 we are unable to extend the current deadline of the 
10 July 2020. We apologise for any inconvenience caused. 
 
Q54: it would be useful to existing consortiums that are bidding to this call, is this 
information available anywhere? 
 
A: Please see our response to Question 16 
 
Q55: The table in the application form for Part C: 1.7 Risk Management has room for 
up to 5 risks. It does say that we can create and complete the table in our word 
document. Can we include more than 5 risks in the table in our word documents, or 
will only the first 5 be evaluated? 
 
A: The Risk Register should include details of key top five risks the Provider 
envisages. Whilst we would like full and comprehensive answers, the Risk Register 
should be succinct. The word count of 500 relates to the response to be provided 



 

 

against the bullet points within the Risk Management question in the Application 
Form, this is inclusive of the words in the table as they will address the first bullet 
point. Bidders may enter the information in the table, or create and complete the 
table in the Word document. 
 
Q56: In our word document, are we allowed to include diagrams in our answers? If 
so, will words in the diagrams count towards the word count for the question? 
 
A: You can use diagrams and tables to support your responses. The words within 
the diagrams/tables will count towards the word count for the question. 
 
Q57: Can an organisation bid as a lead/sole provider and also be part of another bid 
as a subcontractor? 
 
A: Bidders may apply as either a (i) Sole Lead Bidder (ii) a Sole Deliverer with 
Subcontractors/Subgrantees or (iii) as a Consortium. An organisation that submits a 
bid in one of these capacities may also be included as a subcontractor on a bid 
submitted by another organisation. 
 
Q58: Application Form, Part B (iii) ‘Due Diligence Information’ checklist asks for 
‘Budgeted allocation of funding within the project or a budget detailing which activity 
within the recipient’s organisation will be funded, containing line details of proposed 
expenditure (e.g. staffing costs, stationery and publicity)’. Can you clarify how this is 
distinct from the separate requirements to provide both a full organisation budget for 
the current financial year and a breakdown of expected costs of the ESF project over 
its life within the ‘Payment Trigger Calculator’ workbook? 
 
A: The document(s) submitted in response to the request for the 'Budgeted 
Allocation of funding within the project or a budget detailing which activity within the 
recipient's organisation will be funded' should include a breakdown of how the 
funding will be spent over the duration of the programme. This is in addition to the 
Payment Trigger Calculator (PTC), as the PTC only requires the overall breakdown 
of expenditure. The full organisation budget for the current financial year, is the 
bidding organisation's current financial year budget breakdown. 
 
Q59: In regard to the application currently available for Gangs Prevention, could you 
confirm the period of time the delivery plan should cover, and whether it should be 
completed solely within the form or whether an additional document can be 
submitted? In regard to time – is it solely for implementation up to delivery start, or 
for the full programme? 
 
A:  The Delivery Plan should include details of key mobilisation and implementation 
activities which occur from the commencement of the Grant Agreement (which will 
be before Participants and/or Employer Beneficiaries start on the Project) to the end 
of the project. Whilst we would like full and comprehensive answers, the Delivery 
Plan should be succinct, hence the space allocated in Section 4 - 4.3 Delivery Plan. 
Bidders may enter the information in the table, or create and complete the table in 
the Word document. 
 
 



 

 

 
Q60: On the PTC, please can you advise under which cost heading Advertising and 
Promotion costs should be included? 
 
A: Within the Payment Trigger Calculator, the costs related to Advertising and 
Promotion should be included under the heading of 'Consumables'. Advertising and 
Marketing should be detailed in the 'Budgeted Allocation of funding within the project 
or a budget detailing which activity within the recipient's organisation will be funded' 
as part of the due diligence documentation requested which should include a 
breakdown of how the funding will be spent over the duration of the programme. 
 
Published Friday 26 June 2020 
 
Q61:  Part B iii) asks for: A copy of the most audited accounts or copy of the most 
recent accounts signed by an independent and qualified accountant, including a full 
set of notes to the accounts, Directors report, balance sheet, statement of the 
organisation’s turnover, profit and loss/income & expenditure (not abbreviated) and 
cash flow position…. 
  
The question is, our cashflow position sits outside of our main accounts file.  Can we 
submit this as a separate document?  If yes, does it need to be also signed by our 
accountant? 
 
A:   Previous years' audited accounts, which usually include a ‘statement of cash 
flows’ for those years, must be signed by an independent and qualified accountant. 
Bidders can send the statement of cash flow as a separate document, but it needs to 
be signed by an independent and qualified accountant as a true and fair view of the 
organisation’s affairs. 
 
In addition, we require current year’s cash flow. This can be signed  by the 
organisation's Chief Finance Officer (or equivalent). This can be submitted on its 
own, or as part of the organisation’s current year management accounts pack. 
 
Q62:  Please could you confirm whether the Grant Agreement is non-negotiable on 
the legal terms to include an early termination right for both parties with amendment 
of clause 23.2 to reflect both parties have the right to terminate giving 6 months’ 
written notice, updating the Force Majeure clause to include pandemic/resurgence of 
Covid-19 with its restrictions and a reasonable cap on liability for both parties? 
 
A:   In order to preserve the integrity of the application process no changes to the 
published Grant documents that are sought by bidders may be accepted by the GLA. 
Bidders should base their responses on the Grant Agreement published as part of 
the Grant Award bidding documentation. 
 
Q63: We assume that 16-18-year-olds (NEETs) with no qualifications cannot be paid 
for by ESF because it would duplicate statutory provision: Could you please confirm? 
 
A:  16-18 year olds that are NEET, are eligible for our programme as these young 
people would not be in any form of employment, education or training when joining 
the project. The support provided by the GLA-funded ESF project should 



 

 

complement and add value to, not duplicate, any support that a Participant may be 
receiving from other projects or mainstream services 
 
Q64:  For 19+ ESF can support a full level 2 and/or units of Level 3, can the course 
be full-time? If we are engaging colleges to deliver level 2 qualification, do they have 
a choice whether to claim the funding from AEB or charge it to ESF instead? 
 
A:  The delivery of a full Level 2 and/or units of a Level 3, may be full-time or part-
time, ensuring that it meets the needs of the Participant. ESF should add value to 
mainstream provision so if a course is available and can be funded through AEB, 
then the GLA would normally expect the Provider to support a Participant to access 
this separate provision. However, if the course is not available, delivered or funded 
by mainstream AEB in a form that meets the Participant's needs (for example the 
delivery location, course timings, participant support or delivery methodology may 
not be appropriate to the Participant) then it may be delivered and funded as an 
integral element of the ESF project. Please also refer to the response provided to 
Q9. 
 
Q65:  Can a 16-24-year-old with a full level 2 or even with A-levels but who is not 
currently in Education, Employment or Training be considered as NEET?  
  
A:  Please refer to the 'Not in Employment, Education or Training - NEET' definition 
in the Eligibility and Evidence Handbook. The level of qualification the Participant 
has already achieved is not relevant to a Participant being defined as NEET. 
 
Q66:  Bearing in mind that many people are working from home and may not have 
printing or scanning facilities, please can you clarify how Partnership Declaration 
forms should be signed by sub-contractors/sub-grantees to be compliant? Whilst 
version 2 of the form no longer has the note regarding the wet signature 
requirement, it does nevertheless still need a signature.  
 
A:  Wet signatures are not required on any of the bidding documents. Electronic 
signatures are acceptable. An email containing the information in the Partnership 
Declaration Form is also acceptable where the email clearly shows the organisation 
name in the email address and the details of the signatory in the email signature.  
 
Q67:  We are currently completing the Payment Trigger Calculator, and are looking 
for advice on the acceptable levels of cost of direct, indirect and other costs. We 
have found advice regarding the Flat-Rate Indirect Costs found on here: European 
Social Fund Programme for England 2014–2020 National Eligibility Rules 
  
We would like to know: 
1. Would it be acceptable to use the Flat-Rate Indirect Cost model? Either at 
15%/40%?  
2. If so, is there guidance on choosing between the 15%/40% models? 
3. If we are not able to use the model, is there advice on acceptable cost 
proportions, and where can this be found? 
 
A:  The GLA is unable to provide advice to bidders on the costs to be included in 
their budget. Bidders should budget their Project costs based on their estimated 



 

 

actual costs of delivering all elements of the Project to the target group, including any 
management or overhead costs which can be attributed to the Project. The 
Simplified Cost Option for Indirect Costs in the European Social Fund Programme for 
England 2014–2020 National Eligibility Rules, referred to in the question, does not 
apply to projects funded by Co-Financing Organisations, such as the GLA. The 
calculation of apportionment of overhead costs should reflect the proportion of this 
cost which is attributable to the Project. As every project and every organisation is 
different the GLA cannot advise what that apportionment should be. You may also 
find the response to Question 43 useful. 
 
Q68:  I know it is past the deadline for asking questions, but I have just noticed your 
answer to General q 55 (published today) directly contradicts your answer to General 
Q33, regarding whether the 500 word limit applies to the both the Risk table and the 
narrative (Q55), or just to the narrative (Q33). Please clarify.  
 
A:  This question was raised after the deadline, we have felt it was important to 
clarify and have therefore provided a response. We apologise for the inconvenience 
caused and can confirm that the 500 word limit for question 1.7 Risk Management 
does not include the words placed in the table where you are asked to list the risks 
you have identified. 
 
Q69:  Page 17 of the application form asks if you have provided Ofsted reports for 
every sub-contractor and also evidence of accreditation for every subcontractor. Do 
you have to provide these at submission or can you send later? Also have you sent 
any clarifications out as my team have not received any as yet? 
  
A:  If an Ofsted inspection has not taken place and therefore a report is not 
available, you should respond as 'No'. If the Subcontractor/Subgrantee has failed to 
provide an Ofsted report to the Lead Bidder prior to the submission of the Application 
Form, you should respond as 'No'. Note that all required paperwork will need to be 
submitted prior to a Grant Award. Where a Bidder has answered 'No' to any 
questions in (iii) and (iv) the GLA will clarify any discrepancies during the due 
diligence stage with the Bidder. 
All clarifications are published on the GLA website. In order to receive notification 
when clarifications are published, bidders were requested to email 
MayorsESF201923Programme@london.gov.uk to register their interest in submitting 
an Application and to be put on a discrete mailing list to be notified when Clarification 
Questions and Answers have been published online.  
Clarification Questions and Answers are posted on: www.london.gov.uk/what-
wedo/funding/european-social-fund/fundingopportunities 
  
Published Friday 3 July 2020 
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